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			Ortelius Abraham


			Flemish cartographer and geographer, 1528-1598


			1. The Isle of Ischia


			2. That this Island was formerly called Aenaria, Arima, Inarima and Pithecusa has been sufficiently witnessed by Homerus, Aristoteles, Strabo, Plinius, Virgilius, Ovidius and other good writers. Now it is called Ischia after the name of the city here, built upon the top of a hill in a shape somewhat resembling a Hucklebone, as Hermolius Barbarus testifies, or alternatively after the strength and defensibility of the place, as Volaterranus thinks


			3. Although it seems certain that these are just synonyms for one and the same island, yet Mela, Livius and Strabo seem to take Aenaria and Pithecusa to be two distinct islands. As also Ovidius seems to do in these verses: Inarimen Prochitamq. legit, steriliq. locatas Colle Pithecusas, habitantum nomine dictas, (that is: By Inarime he sails, by Prochyte island, by barren Pithecuse, a town on top of a lofty crag, where wily Apes roam). Where by Pithecusas he means, as I think, the city anciently (as also now) of the same name as the whole island.


			4. Although it can now be seen to be joined to the Island, yet in former times it was called Gerunda, and it was separated from and not joined to the isle, as Pontanus, a trustworthy man, says in the second book which he wrote on the wars of Naples. There he says that in his time it was joined to the island by a road made between them. Prochita, not far distant from there, (about which Plinius writes that it was separasted from Pithecusa) shows that it was sometimes joined to and sometimes not joined to this Island.


			5. The same author says (as approved by Strabo) that all of this was cut off from the mainland and was part of cape Miseno. This is confirmed by Pontanus whom we mentioned before i n his sixth bopok in these words: That Aenaria, he says, was cut off from the mainland is proved by many things, namely. The torn rocks, The hollow ground full of caves, The nature of the soil which is like that on the mainland, namely lean, dry and issuing hot springs and fountains.


			6. It breeds flaming fires in the middle of the earth, for which reason it is manifest that it contains much Alum. Andreas Baccius in his famous book on the Baths of the whole world writes that this island resembles Campania (of which it was once a part) not only with respect to the fertility of its soil, but also for the likeness and similitude of its baths.


			7. Erythrceus, basing himself on the 9th book of Virgilius’ Aeneiads thinks that it was called Arima after a kind of people or beasts with that name, and that Virgilius was the first, when he translated the expression of Homerus “in Greek script” ein arimois after the Ionian preposition “in Greek script” ein and arimois, altering the declension and number, who made up the new word Inarime.


			8. And as the same Plinius reports, it was called Aenaria after the ships of Aeneas which were put into the harbour here, & Pithecusa, not after the great number of Apes here, but after Tun-makers shops or warehouses. But this is a view which the same Erythrceus in the place mentioned before exerts himself to deny as being not altogether according to the truth because he has not read in any author about barrels being made there.


			9. Yet, Servius in my judgment seems, following the 6th book of Virgilius Aeneads cited, to side with Plinius where he says that near Cumoea there was a certain place named Doliola (which means, if we interpret it, Tuns). And it is more likely that this Island should take its name from that place with which it was once united, according to the opinion of these good authors, rather than from apes (for I do not believe the fable of Ovidius) of which beasts there are none here, nor ever there were.


			10. That this island from the beginning has been subjected to earthquakes, flames of fire and hot waters often breaking forth, we know for sure from Strabo and Plinius. The mountain which Strabo calls Epomeus and Plinius Epopos, now they call it St. Nicolas mount, is supposed to have burned internally at the bottom for the same reason, and being shaken by earthquakes, to have cast great flakes of fire now and then.


			11. As a result, it is here that the fable arose about Typhon the giant (about whom you may have read in Homerus, Virgilius, Silius Italicus (who calls him Iapetes), Lucanus and others), as the same Strabo says, who they guess to lie underneath this hill, and to breathe out fire and water. It has been shown conclusively that it (this island) is wonderfully fertile by recent writers, such as Io. Elysius, Franciscus Lombardus, Joannes Pontanus, Solenander, Andreas Baccius and particularly by Iasolinus, the author of this map. He lists in it, next to the 18 natural baths about which others have written, there are 35 other baths, first discovered by himself.


			12. Besides these baths, the same author mentions 19 stoves or hothouses (fumarolas they call them) and 5 “areas with” medicinal sands, excellent for health through its drying of raw hunours. About this fire in the bowels of the earth, Aristoteles in his book on the Miracles of Nature says that there are certain stoves which burn with a fiery kind of force and exceedingly fervent heat, and yet they never burst in to flames.


			13. But Elysius, Pandulphus and Pontanus report to the contrary. There is a place on this Island of Ischia, about a mile from the city with the same name, which, because of the raging fire that burnt here in the time in the Charles II in the year 1301 is now called Cremate. For here the bowels of the earth opened up and by the flashing fire that flamed out, a great part of it was consumed to such an extent that a small village that was first burned down, was at last utterly swallowed. And casting huge stones up into the air, mixed with smoke, fire and dust, which coming down by their own weight and violence scattered here and there on the ground, and turned a most fertile and pleasant island into a waste and desolate one.


			14. This fire continued to burn for two months, so that many, both men and beasts, were destroyed by it, and the fire forced many to take themselves and their belonging either to the adjacent islands or to the mainland. Yet this island is for many things very fruitful, for it has excellent good wines of various kinds, like that which they call Greek wine, Roman and Sorbinian wine and  Cauda caballi “horse tail”.


			15. It produces good corn around mount St. Nicholas (mount Epomeus). On this island the Cedar, Pome-lemon and the Quince tree grow everywhere in great numbers. Alume and Brimstone are found deep within the earth. It has for a very long time had some veins of gold, as Strabo and Elysius have written, and it still has gold, as Iasolinus says. Around its hill (commonly called Monte Ligoro) there is a great abundance of pheasants, hares, rabbits and other wild beasts.


			16. Near cape St. Angeli they catch much fish, and also find much Coral. Not far from there is the harbour Ficus or Fichera where the water boils so hot that meat or fish is boiled in it very quickly, and yet it has a pleasant taste and is very savoury. There is a fountain which they call Nitroli which is admirable because of its great virtues to cure certain diseases, but also, if you put flax into it, it will turn it white as snow within three days at the most.


			17. The author of this Map says that this isle for its size, good climate, fertility of its soil, metal mines and strong wines surpasses the other 25 islands which there are in the bay of Naples. Between the foreland Aeus, and the other one named Cephalino there is a large cave that is a safe harbour for ships, especially for pinnacles and other such small ships. It is likely that Aeneas landed here, about which Ovidius speaks, as also Pompeius when he sailed from Sicilia to Puteoli. Appianus writes about this in the 5th book of his Civil wars.


			18. On same island, opposite Cumoe, there is a lake that is always full of Sea gulls or Fen ducks which are very profitable for the inhabitants. The words of Plinius, speaking about this island, are worth noting. On this island, he says, a whole town sunk. And at another occasion, as the result of an earthquake, the firm land became a standing pool, stagnum he calls it (although anciently printed copies have statinas instead of stagnum, in which place the learned Scaliger would have preferred to find stativas, meaning standing waters).


			19. The same Plinius has recorded that if one here cuts down a Cedar tree, it will shoot forth and bud again. Livius says that the Chalcidenses of Euboea were the first to inhabit this island, but Strabo says the first inhabitants were the Eretrienses. But these also came from the isle of Euboea. I think that Athenoeus in his 9th book means this island, although he does not mention it, which he says he saw (as the sailed from Dicoearchia to Naples) being inhabited by a few men, but full of rabbits.


			20. There is also near this island the isle of Prochyta, an island so named not after Aeneas’ nurse, but because it was profusa ab Aenaria, severed from Aenaria or, as Strabo writes in his 5th book, from Pithecusae. Yet, he has instead (Scipio Mazella in his additions to the volume of Esylius on the Baths of Puteoli) in his 1st book writes that it was separated from Miseno, but both may be true, for one as well as the other may have been torn from the mainland by inundations and tempestuous storms.


			21. The poets pretend that Minas the giant lies under this Island, as Typhon lies under Ischia. Silius Italicus: Apparet Prochita saevum sortita. About which Horatius writes to Calliope in his 3rd book of Poems. Andreas Baccius writes about this isle like this: It is a small isle, he says, but very pleasant, rich with metals and hot baths, yet, because of its continuous fires which the continuous tides of the sea kindle in it, as Strabo writes, it was never much inhabited. It still retains its ancient name, for they now call it Procida. About this island you may read more in Scipio Mazella in his additions to the volume of Elysius on the Baths of Puteoli.


		


	

		

			Alan Ross


			The Gulf of pleasure, 1951


			  The town of Porto d’Ischia is in reality two separate places, different in function, in architecture and in date. The beautiful, circular harbour which was originally completely bounded by rocks and formed a lake, was opened under Bourbon rule in 1853 by cutting away a narrow strip of rock. The whole of the modern town and harbour dates from this period and reflects its twin occupations—fishing and the summer tourist trade. Lovely old two and three-masted fishing boats lie alongside fast, new motorboats and all the way up the hill to the pinewoods, over the Punta San Pietro, villas and hotels, a string of light at night, adjoin one another with terraced gardens dropping their buff edges on the shore. But only here and at Casamicciola is there any impression of a special façade put up for visitors though it is still, for the moment anyway, unostentatious, and the whole coastfront to the castello has a lazy romanticism that the smart beach, and its smoothly-tailored occupants, never quite destroy. The old town, which is early sixteenth century, has narrow, honeycomb streets in the Genoese fashion, a special, rather dingy beach of its own - the Spiaggia dei Pescatori - and is austerely, a little dirtily, beautiful. The houses are painted in delicate washed pink, blue and yellow, a wash which has run down the walls and round the windows into enormous tearstains. During the heat of the day, its refuse crawling with flies, the narrow alleys fester and smell, but in the evening, when houses glow, the sea levelled into a meringue-coloured, foamy strip, the whole population, the buildings themselves, seem released. Lights come out singly in windows doubled on water; small bulbs burn over complacent religious effigies inset under leaking harbour walls. Old women, barely visible in the darkness, crouch over their doorsteps, children asleep like weights round them, and the whole length of the narrow bridge to the castle is lined with old fishermen sitting and smoking in silence on the walls, wrinkled clay like their pipes.


			  At the end of the bridge the Aragonese Castle straggles down from the top of an enormous rock, the decaying buildings jutting unsteadily over sheer drops. The Castle, even the shell that remains, is magnificently imposing, but a little top-heavy, almost sinister, like too big a head. Approaching it by boat, you go over patches of sharp green water with rocks laid out like continens, needing constant attention, just below the surface. The water immediately under the raw, dun-coloured hump of rock is extremely deep and of a starding transparency so that, looking down, one seems to be invading its privacy, too close to its naked depths. Landng, you enter unter a small bridge tacked on the end of the causeway that joins the old port onto the castello. The road up is steep and winding, going through tunnels lit with electric candles that burn over images of saints with faces like tailors’ dummie; the n the tunnels branch into rooms on either side, strewn with rusted tins and straw, the floorboards rotting, but with sea spread out in thick blue-green streamers below and the mauve shapes of Capri and Procida, like ships at anchor, visible through the slit windows.


			Little of the original castle, built by Alphonso I of Aragon, still remains. (...)


			Casamicciola has a main street, bordered with oleander and palms, running in a straight line along the sea’s edge. On the landward side, several hundred yards of shops, every fifth or sixth separated by narrow lanes running up and losing themselves in the hills, curve round eventually into a piazza, so that the whole town is L-shaped- an effect increased by the pier that runs out from the main square some hundred yards into the sea.


			  The piazza itself has three or four cafes facing each other uneasily through trees, a taxi rank and a space for carriages. From here everything and everybody can be, and are, observed; the two or three daily buses, the Naples steamer, the arrival of fishing vessels and motorboats. Beyond the quay, the small bathing beach, a litter of upturned boats, while the road curves round a slight point, under cliffs hollowed into wine cellars, towards Lacco Ameno.


			Each Ischian town has a bay of its own, a ridge of hills, and a headland that separates them from one another. So that though none of them are more than five miles apart - most of them about two - they seem each to have a distinctive atmos­phere, a private character. (...)


			Forio is the second town of Ischia, the industrial capital though the furthest from Naples. Lacking a good hotel, it is also the least visited. Yet it is the one really indigenous town in the island, where the inhabitants seem to live for themselves, rather than for other people. The Forians have a life of their own, a  working life that is related to the general history and commerce of Italy.


			For, on the whole, people come to Forio to live. That is something one doesn’t feel abou any other Ischian town. (...)


			  We reached Fontana just as the sun slipped like a lozenge into the sea. Fontana is the highest point reached by the main road; from then on there is only a direct route up the mountain. It was steep, arid going, almost unrelieved by trees or vegetation. Occasionally we passed a peasant’s disused, crumbling cottage, blurred like a sepulchre in the fading light; half-way up there were remains of a viaduct; then only the path parting the colourless scrub. It grew perceptibly colder, the air clean and sweet after the coast. Below us a few lights glimmered at various levels of the hill; at the bottom Sant’ Angelo glowed, like a stationary railway carriage, the sea a pale wash in its lights.


			  We began the last stage of the climb in near darkness. The gaunt, ragged outline of Epomeo, its double peak suspended unreally over us, seemed to come near, then retreat into night. We had the impression of far greater height than actually existed - probably because we had made a direct climb from sea-level. Already the gulf was like a military table-map. The coastline round the arms of the bay seemed flat, a flicker of lights at the sea’s edge. The guides pushed doggedly on ahead of us, their red woollen caps just visible as they turned to shout throatily at the mules who by now had slowed down, exaggerating their tiredness. We began to be glad of our extra jerseys.


			  The last few hundred yards were through flatter, grey scrub, a mountain narrowing acutely into a forked peak. The path suddenly wound out of undergrowth onto an open, unfinished- looking stump of rock, with, at one end built into it, an oblong  stone building.


			  We emerged into buffeting wind, from the quiet protective-ness of the mountain’s barrier into noise and a kind of exposed finality. A huge door, just beneath the jagged crag of the summit, opened into a labyrinth of dark passages; immediately to its right, lights were burning in a small chapel whose door was open.


			  As we dismounted, a tonsured, slight figure wearing a brown habit came out of the chapel.


		


	

		

			Charles Lyell


			British lawyer and geologist, 1797-1875


			Principles of Geology, London, 1830


			Early convulsions in the Island of Ischia —The Neapolitan volcanos extend from Vesuvius, through the Phlegraean Fields, to Pro­cida, and Ischia, in a somewhat linear arrangement, ranging from the north-east to the south-west. Within the space above limited, the volcanic force is sometimes developed in single eruptions from a considerable number of irregularly scattered points; but a great part of its action has been confined to one principal and ha­bitual vent, Vesuvius or Somma. Before the Christian era, from the remotest periods of which we have a ny tradition, this principal vent was in a state of inactivity. But terrific convulsions then took place from time to time in Ischia (Pithecusa), and seem to have extended to the neighbouring isle of Procida (Prochyta); for Strabo mentions a story of Procida having been torn asunder from Ischia; and Pliny derives its name from its having been poured forth by an eruption from Ischia.


			The present circumference of Ischia along the water’s edge is eighteen miles, its length from west to east about five, and its breadth from north to south three miles. Several Greek colonies which settled there before the Christian era were compelled to abandon it in consequence of the violence of the eruptions. First the Erythraeans, and afterwards the Chalcidians, are mentioned as having been driven out by earthquakes and igneous exhalations. A colony was afterwards established by Hiero, king of Syracuse, about 380 years before the Christian era ; but when they had built a fortress, they were compelled by an eruption to fly, and never again returned. Strabo tells us that Timeus recorded a tradition, that, a little before his time, Epomeus, the principal mountain in the centre of the island, vomited fire during great earthquakes; that the land between it and the coast had ejected much fiery matter, which flowed into the sea, and that the sea receded for the distance of three stadia, and then returning, overflowed the island. This eruption is supposed by some to have been that which formed the crater of Monte Corvo on one of the higher flanks of Epomeo, above Foria, the lava-current of which may still be traced, by aid of the scoria on its surface, from the crater to the sea.


			To one of the subsequent eruptions in the lower parts of the isle, which caused the expulsion of the first Greek colony, Monte Rotaro has been attributed, and it bears every mark of recent origin. The cone, which I examined in 1828, is remarkably perfect, and has a crater on its summit precisely resembling that of Monte Nuovo near Naples; but the hill is larger, and resembles some of the more con­siderable cones of single eruption near Clermont in Auvergne, and, like some of them, it has given vent to a lava-stream at its base, instead of its summit. A small ravine swept out by a torrent exposes the structure of the cone, which is composed of innumerable inclined and slightly undulating layers of pumice, scoriae, white lapilli, and enormous angular blocks of trachyte. These last have evidently been thrown out by violent explosions, like those which in 1822 launched from Vesuvius a mass of augitic lava, of many tons’ weight, to the distance of three miles, which fell in the garden of Prince Ottajano. The cone of Rotaro is covered with the arbutus, and other beautiful evergreens. Such is the strength of the virgin soil, that the shrubs have become almost arborescent; and the growth of some of the smaller wild plants has been so vigorous, that botanists have scarcely been able to recognize the species.


			The eruption which dislodged the Syracusan colony is supposed to have given rise to that mighty current which forms the promontory of Zaro and Caruso. The surface of these lavas is still very arid and bristling, and is covered with black scoriae; so that it is not without great labour that human industry has redeemed some small spots, and converted them into vineyards. Upon the produce of these vine­yards the population of the island is almost entirely supported. It amounted when I was there, in 1828, to about twenty-five thousand, and was on the increase.


			From the date of the great eruption last alluded to, down to our own time, Ischia has enjoyed tranquillity, with the exception of one emission of lava hereafter to be described, which, although it occa­sioned much local damage, does not appear to have devastated the whole country, in the manner of more ancient explosions. There are, upon the whole, on different parts of Epomeo, or scattered through the lower tracts of Ischia, twelve considerable volcanic cones, which have been thrown up since the island was raised above the surface of the deep; and many streams of lava may have flowed, like that of “Arso” in 1302, without cones having been produced; so that this island may, for ages before the period of the remotest tra­ditions, have served as a safety-valve to the whole Terra di Lavoro, while the fires of Vesuvius were dormant.


			Volcanic eruption in Ischia, 1302. - The other occurrence is well authenticated, - the eruption, in the year 1302, of a lava-stream from a new vent on the south-east end of the Island of Ischia. During part of 1301, earthquakes had succeeded one another with fearful rapidity; and they terminated at last with the discharge of a lava-stream from a point named the Campo del Arso, not far from the town of Ischia. This lava ran quite down to the sea - a distance of about two miles: in colour it varies from iron grey to reddish black, and is remarkable for the glassy felspar which it contains. Its surface is almost as sterile, after a period of five centuries, as is it had cooled down yesterday. A few scantlings of wild thyme, and two or three other dwarfish plants, alone appear in the interstices of the scoriae, while the Vesuvian lava of 1767 is already covered with a luxuriant vegetation. Pontanus, whose country-house was burnt and overwhelmed, describes the dreadful scene as having lasted two months. Many houses were swallowed up, and a partial emigration of the inhabitants followed. This eruption produced no cone, but only a slight depression, hardly deserving the name of a crater, where heaps of black and red scoriee lie scattered around. Until this eruption, Ischia is generally believed to have enjoyed an interval of rest for about seventeen centuries; but Julius Obsequens, who flourished A.D. 214, refers to some volcanic convulsions in the year 662 after the building of Rome (91 B. A). As Pliny, who lived a century before Obsequens, does not enumerate this among other volcanic eruptions, the statement of the latter author is supposed to have been erroneous; but it would be more consistent, for reasons before stated, to disregard the silence of Pliny, and to conclude that some kind of subterranean commotion, probably of no great violence, happened at the period alluded to.


		


	

		

			Willam and Robert Chambers


			Chambers’s Edinburgh Journal


			Vol. XIV, Edinburgh 1851


			Recollections of Ischia


				It is one of the countless errors which tourists are wont to repeat after each other, that Italy ought to be seen in winter; that Italy has no spring; that it is in summer barren and burnt up. It is true that an Italian winter, a December or January day in Rome, is enchanting to the stranger who remembers the bleakness of his own northern home ; but still it is winter. The chestnut and acacia trees are bare; the leaf has fallen from the vine, and its slender twigs have been placed as fuel in the fireplace, for even in Rome the cheerful fire is not unwelcome during three months of the year; and when the tramontana blows, it is often extremely cold, and the air very sharp and piercing. February, however, brings with it new life and beauty. The chestnut-trees burst into leaf; the earth clothes itself with soft verdure; the laurels and the monthly roses, the orange-trees and the serena, put forth their blossoms; the sun shines out brightly, and the skies become of a clear, deep blue. Neither are any of those sweet spring feelings wanting here which are so dear to us northerns; for the joyous gladness felt in Italy upon the awakening of nature is just as great as if one had been shut up for many months between ice and snow.


				Surprising, indeed, to northern people are the vigour and rapidity with which vegetable life unfolds itself here in early spring. That which in our country would require several weeks, springs up here in a few short days to perfect beauty ; and the rich variety of plants, shrubs, and trees, contributes in no small degree to the magic impression created by this southern land. One must, however, abandon Naples and the Italian peninsula ; one must visit the islands in summer-time rightly to know what the south is, and to comprehend a perfectly new state of existence in which he may live joyously, although deprived of many of the ordinary conveniences of our modern civilisation. There they lie near one another - Nisida, the Cape Miseno, Procida, the blue Capri, and the lovely Ischia - all children of that moment in which the earth poured forth the flaming stream of her inmost life into the curling waves of the sea, which, on receiving the burning mass, transformed it into a rock. And still is this fire-life full of activity within the islands; still does it breathe in the boiling springs and in the smoking soil; it ripens the fiery grape, it sparkles in the eyes of the natives of the soil, and it glows in the flame-coloured blossoms of the cactus and the pomegranate.


				Ischia, the largest of these islands, bears the most evident traces of its volcanic origin. On coming from Naples, and landing at the nearest port in the island, one is immediately struck by a very remarkable rock in the form of a truncated cone, which stands alone in the sea, and is formed of pure lava. It is united to the island by a bridge, and upon its crown arises proudly the fortress of Ischia. Close to the sea-shore beneath lies the little town of Ischia, and beyond it the old crater, which, during five hundred years, laid the island waste so repeatedly, that it became deserted by its inhabitants, and was re-peopled at a later epoch by certain Greeks and Spaniards, who were attracted thither by the peculiar privileges granted by the king of Naples to the volcanic island.


				Four small towns lie on the northern side of the island - Ischia, Casamicciola, Lecco (Lacco), and Foria. They are connected by a broad road, the only regular one in the island, and whose course lies across the hills and through the valleys. The total absence of villages, which is so striking a peculiarity of Italy, is here remarkably apparent. Wherever a few families settle down near each other in Italy, there is quickly founded a little town (paese), which has its market-place in the midst, its church, its convent, and here, on the sea-coast, its harbour and its marina. Neither are there ever wanting a coffee-house, an apothecary’« shop, a couple of retail-dealers, a doctor, and a surgeon. Above the door of the last-mentioned is displayed a sign, on which is represented a man, from the veins of whose feet and hands blood spouts forth as from a fountain; for bloodletting is such a relief, such a pleasure to the Italians, that during the warm weather they have recourse to it almost every month. The towns are paved throughout with large flags; the houses massive, with flat roofs. Their windows, which reach to the ground, open out into small iron-grated balconies. In the market-place is always to be found the aquajolo, with his small, gaily-painted shop, in which he sells iced-water and lemonade. Around this place of refreshment are wont to assemble men of the labouring class, while the more opulent citizens meet together in the coffee-house; and at the grocer’s or apothecary’s are to be found ecclesiastics chatting and whiling away the time, which otherwise would hang heavy upon their hands.


				In the islands one learns how the varying customs of divers countries depend in a great measure on the climate as well as upon mere local circumstances. In Ischia there is to be found but a single carriage, which belongs to the richest inhabitant of Foria. It is a two-wheeled one-horse cabriolet, and whenever the track of its wheels is seen, then every one knows that Don Antonio is pursuing his triumphant career throughout the island. It is not easy to go any great distance on foot, because of the sultry heat and the abrupt steepness of the hills; so that the most ordinary mode of conveyance is the humble, patient ass, upon whose back a Spanish saddle is placed whenever it is used by women. The deepest stillness reigns in these countries, and it is unbroken even by the sound of those domestic animals which usually give life to a rural scene. As there is but one carriage to be found in Ischia, so is there also only one cow. The people do not eat butter, and those who want milk must be satisfied with goats’ milk. No lowing of herds ; no neighing of horses, for donkeys are considered so much safer here, that the former are very scarce indeed; no rolling of carriages meet the ear. Even the little towns lie in peaceful silence, and between them are scattered single villas, among which, here and there, is visible a small white church. Each villa is surrounded by its vineyard; each vineyard, enclosed by high walls, forms in itself a separate little demesne.


				Gravely and loftily does the once flaming Epomeo, whose rocky and indented ridge cuts the island in two.


				The natives of Ischia are handsome, with a Moorish or Spanish type of countenance. The most beautiful amongst them are the inhabitants of Foria. where the clear blue eyes of the people add an indescribable charm to the dark complexion and raven locks of their southern and ardent physiognomies. Like all other Italians, the islanders have an innate courtesy and refinement in their intercourse with each other, as well as with strangers. Even among the very lowest classes they are full of consideration for women; and nowhere hare I seen grown persons so tenderly careful of children, or so gently playful with them, as here. It is by no means true that the Italian is idle and lazy: he labours hard the whole day long; and that is saying ranch in a climate where, during three months, the thermometer, even at midnight, never falls below 25 or 26 degrees (Reaumur).	
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